MEETING MINUTES 1 GEORGETOWN PLANNING BOARD 2 Wednesday, October 23rd, 2013 3 Memorial Town Hall – 3rd Floor 4 5 7:00 p.m. 6 7 **Present:** Mr. Harry LaCortiglia: Mr. Christopher Rich: Ms. Tillie Evangelista: Mr. Tim Howard 8 (arrived at 7:40 PM); Mr. Bob Watts (arrived at 7:19 PM); Mr. Howard Snyder, Town Planner; Ms. Wendy Beaumont, Administrative Assistant. 9 10 11 Meeting Opens at 7:18 PM. 12 13 **Approval of Minutes:** 14 1. Minutes of September 18, 2013. Mr. Rich - **Motion** to accept the minutes of September 18th, 2013 as amended and subject to 15 any changes made by colleagues at this meeting. 16 Ms. Evangelista - Second. 17 Motion Carries: 3-0; Unam.. (1 Abstention) 18 19 20 {Mr. Watts arrives at 7:19 PM.} 21 22 **Vouchers:** 23 1. North of Boston Media Group: Medical Marijuana Legal Ad. 24 2. GateHouse Media: Legal Notice. 25 26 Mr. Rich - **Motion** to pay the vouchers as presented. 27 Ms. Evangelista - **Second.** Motion Carries: 4-0; Unam. 28 29 30 **Correspondence:** 1. Town of Newbury: Zoning Board of Appeals – Special Permit / Finding. 31 2. Haves Engineering: Lisa Lane Development and Abutter's Request for layout to property. 32 33 3. BSC Group: Review letter report of Harmony Lane plans. 34 4. Definitive Subdivision Plan Application: Turning Leaf (Lisa Lane). 35 Mr. Snyder - I want to note that the second item is a letter from Hayes Engineering regarding the Lisa Lane development which is now referred to as Turning Leaf. Item number four is the 36 37 definitive subdivision plan application from the developer for the definitive plan. These items are presented here but they will be brought up at the first public hearing at the November 13th 38 39 meeting. The third item is from BSC Group which is a review letter on Harmony Lane and that 40 will be placed on the agenda as well with the additional correspondence received today on Harmony Lane and the release of some of the bond money. These will be put on the agenda for 41 the November 13th meeting. 42 43

Old Business:

44

45

1. Special Permit: 124 Tenney Street: Decision of Approval.

- Mr. Snyder This is the decision of approval that has been written up and sent out to the board. I did not receive any comments back. We have received the mylars from the engineer so it is all ready for signatures. Mr. LaCortiglia - This was previously voted on correct? Mr. Snyder - Yes and approved. Mr. LaCortiglia - Is everybody good with signing the mylars and the decision? Ms. Evangelista - I had a question about the decision regarding the water resource and I was
 - Ms. Evangelista I had a question about the decision regarding the water resource and I was surprised that we made a recommendation. We had never done that before.
 - Mr. Snyder It was not a recommendation it was a notation that he has not made an application to the zoning board as part of the water resource district. None of the uses he has proposed trigger a review.
 - Ms. Evangelista I was surprised that that is not the Planning board decision; it is really the building inspector to make that determination.
 - Mr. LaCortiglia I thought we had that in the response regarding the special permit and the jurisdiction for the ZBA? Because it was two buildings on one lot which requires a special permit and also it was in a water resource district. And he wrote us a letter back and that is in the file.
 - {Mr. Snyder reads the letter.}

- Ms. Evangelista I was surprised that you felt it necessary to put it in because...
- 75 Mr. Snyder I put it in because it shows that the Planning board didn't consider any of it. 76
 - Mr. LaCortiglia So we are not permitting it, we are disclaiming it. It is a disclaimer.
 - Ms. Evangelista I think it is safer to take it out myself because I am taking it differently than you are. We have never addressed what another board has to make their jurisdiction we just leave it out or the building inspector has to make that clarity.
 - Mr. Rich That is a good point. I don't know whose jurisdiction it is. I don't believe it is ours. I like what Mr. Snyder has written in there. Can I see it please Mr. Snyder as there is one thing I would like to add to it?
 - Mr. Snyder Usually we write in the order of conditions from ConCom and everything in incorporated into our decision and because we hadn't received anything from the ZBA I wanted to recognize that fact that we hadn't received anything.

Mr. Rich - Here's what I would put in there: At the time of this decision the Planning board has not received any correspondence from the ZBA and to the Planning Boards knowledge the ZBA has not reviewed the application in respect to the special permit for a facility within a water resource. And the Planning Board is not ruling in any part on a facility nor is it part of this decision concerning any issues in that respect.

Mr. Rich - Motion to sign the decision with the changes made this evening.

Mr. Watts - Second.

Motion Carries: 4-0; Unam.

New Business:

1. ANR: Map 10 Lot 63 Tolman property on Pingree Farm Road.

Mr. Snyder - The Planning Board received an ANR application for the Tolman property off of Pingree Road which is off of East Main Street. The information provided is in your packet.

Mr. LaCortiglia - Has the filing fee been paid?

Mr. Snyder - Yes.

Mr. Tolman - Well, it is an old woods road and it should qualify for ANR approval. I've owned the land for 40 odd years and I think we can meet all the requirements. Mr. Snyder was out there looking at it today. The fire chief gave us an idea of what to do because we intend on drilling wells instead of bringing a water main up there and he would like some fire protection and he would like to see a twenty thousand gallon reservoir of water there which I agreed with. Other than that you people have some paperwork on it.

Mr. Snyder - Everything that we've received as part of the application is in the packet. We did a site walk out there with Mr. Tolman and I invited the police and fire chiefs to go and look at it too. Those reports will be forthcoming.

Mr. LaCortiglia - Do we have an overview?

Mr. Snyder - Yes. {Shows it on the screen and describes the different areas.}

Mr. Rich - Is there housing on that side? I am thinking about a complaint once brought to the BOH about odors from the horse farm.

Mr. Tolman - They were trying to put a senior development in there a couple of years ago.

{Mr. Howard arrives at 7:40 PM.}

Ms. Evangelista - From what I remember that is just supposed to be a fire lane to get to the state forest and that's why I think maybe they ought to be notified that there is a request like this. It is a fire road to get to the property in the back.

- Mr. Tolman May I address that? It is not considered a fire road. It was the main road in the 1800's from Georgetown to Rowley which merged with Pingree Farm Road. That was a main thoroughfare at that point. I have documentation from the forestry department that says we share
- the road with the fire department. I can give you more documentation.

Mr. Rich - Can you get that to us? Mr. Tolman - Yes. Mr. Snyder - From a planning standpoint I just want to make sure everybody is careful of using the words road and way because you will need to be consider the adequacy of the way and the frontage of the way that the ANR application is considering. Mr. Rich - As I see it, a Road is a Way and a Lane is a Way and a Court is a Way. And that's why it reads the adequacy of the Way. Mr. LaCortiglia - The Form A, you have circled C here which says the private way in existence on October 7, 1954 but the stamped plan you submitted states that Pingree Road is a public way. Mr. Tolman - In 1984 when they came up with the official town map, they erased that road right off the map. And you people turned around and put it on as a private way part way up the road to the forest. Mr. Snyder - On the official town map this area is shown as a private way. {Shows the map on the screen and the area in question. Mr. LaCortiglia - We have a professional land surveyor saying it is public. Mr. Rich - Do you have any pictures of the old road like an aerial view of the old road showing it going all the way through that property from back then? Mr. Tolman - Yes I have a map from 1830. Mr. LaCortiglia - Did you have a chance of looking up any USGS maps? Mr. Snyder - No. Mr. LaCortiglia - Maybe we could check that out. Ms. Evangelista - I have a question. Why is this plan you are presenting to us not recorded? Mr. Tolman - It is recorded at the registry of deeds. Ms. Evangelista - It says right on it "unrecorded plan by S & W Landscape December 5, 1997. Mr., Tolman - This piece of land was surveyed three times because we were ready to bring it to the board a couple of times.

 Mr. Rich - Right on the plan under current ownership – it is recorded. The engineer may be saying that this plan that he drew is not the exact plan that has been recorded at the registry but he's taken his information from that plan. Mr. Tolman, would you get us a copy please of plan book 423, plan 81?

Mr. LaCortiglia - It might be helpful to ask your land surveyor who drew this plan to get us copies of the four references. That would be helpful. Ms. Evangelista - So have you ever come to the Planning Board for an ANR for this subdivision before? Mr. Tolman - No. Ms. Evangelista - So the only thing recorded is that you own the property. Mr. Tolman - With engineered plans. Ms. Evangelista - And there were no divisions of land or anything? Mr. Tolman - No. Mr. Howard - You came before the Planning Board maybe six years ago about a potential subdivision next to the horse farm. Mr. Tolman - I was only here as an abutter. Mr. Howard - You expressed an interest to develop that land. Mr. Tolman - Not officially. Ms. Evangelista - I still would like the department of environmental management to review this plan and give us a heads up as to whether they are supportive of it or not. He said they are sharing the road and what does that mean, sharing the road? Mr. Snyder - I think it needs to be shown as either a private way or public way. It is shown as a public way on the plan of land submitted by the applicant. It is written on the application as a private way. If it's a private way the drawings need to be changed and if it's a public way the drawings need to be certified by the clerk that it is maintained and used as a public way. Mr. Tolman - You people submitted the information to the MVPC board to make it a private way on part of it. Mr. LaCortiglia - We have just gone through seven or eight months of trying to correct one of the mistakes that were made on that plan. Unfortunately we are human and make mistakes. Mr. Tolman - I went to see them and they said they just take the information from you and put it on the map.

Mr. LaCortiglia - They take it from the assessor's office and that is something we may want to check out.

Mr. Tolman - The other mistake made is that this is RC which is 80 thousand and they had it down as one acre. We corrected that. On the horse farm it was spot zoning they just took Red's and made him one acre and left everyone else as two acre.

- Ms. Evangelista I remember that, he was away and the Planning Board at the time went up put it on the town meeting and he came back from vacation and said, "What happened. They cut my property value in half." When that came to light they went back to town meeting but they only changed Red's not anybody else.
- Mr. Tolman And they didn't do the front part of his lot where the house is because that zoning comes back 275 feet. You just tell me what you want and I'll bring it.
- Mr. LaCortiglia It would be really helpful if you could get us those four sources. Mr. Snyder you said you took a walk out there, did you take any pictures? {Shows pictures on the screen.}
- 250 Mr. Rich What does that sign say?
- 252 Mr. Tolman No motor vehicles. 253
- Mr. LaCortiglia Whose sign is it?
- 256 Mr. Tolman The forestry department. 257
- 258 Mr. Howard The state.

246

251

259

264265

266

267

268

269

270

271

275

277

281

- Ms. Evangelista As far as I know, it is only a fire lane.
- Mr. Rich Mr. Tolman, do you have written notation from the state saying that you can drive motor vehicles on that road?
 - Mr. Tolman The only thing the state and I have talked many times and the only thing they made loud and clear is if you cut trees do not pile them within 50 feet of the lot line. The reason those gates were put there is that people were throwing tires in the forest so they gated it off and they gave me a key to the gate. A couple years ago a kid got hurt down there and they could not get into the road so since then they took the cable down. We have the documentation to bring in to you.
- Mr. LaCortiglia Yes, please bring in anything you can.
- Mr. Snyder During that time I'd encourage the board to go out to the site.
- Mr. Howard I've walked on that road a hundred times.
- 278 Mr. LaCortiglia I have never. 279
- Mr. Rich Can you drive in there now?
- Mr. Tolman Definitely. There is enough for two cars to pass. What I did was clean the road up.
- 284285 Mr. Rich Is the gate open?
- Mr. Tolman All you have to do is move it to the side. I would be glad to meet you and go on a site walk anytime.

Mr. Rich - As a start I would like to see all the documentation. Mr. LaCortiglia - Absolutely, you will provide all of that right Mr. Tolman? Mr. Tolman - Yes. Mr. Rich - Do we need a time period for that documentation because we are under a time frame. Mr. Snyder - It is 28 days. Mr. Rich - It is 28 days for us to say yes or no. How soon can you get that information to us? Mr. Tolman - At the next meeting. Mr. Rich - I'd like to see it before that. Ms. Evangelista - It might take longer to get any comment from the state and to notify the environmental management that this is the proposal so that they know that this is going on. Mr. Howard - Mr. Snyder can do that- whoever put that sign up. Mr. Snyder - I will check it out and notify whoever is applicable. Mr. Howard - Further down there are other signs. Mr. Snyder - There is plenty of time to get the information to the planning office for the boards review. Mr. Howard - What I remember from eight years ago is that this was not workable and I don't remember why. He needed that access from the left side of this property. I can't remember the details but if you go back in the planning records Mr. Snyder you may find that. Ms. Evangelista - Was that Bussing's proposal? Mr. Howard - I don't think so. I think it was Mr. Tolman. everybody thought this belonged to the forest. This is where the problem has lied all along and why I couldn't do anything. They kept saying you don't own it as the line is there. If you also

Mr. Tolman - Let me tell you what the discrepancy was here. As this road comes to the point it showed on all the maps a line coming across. That the first bound line came across that road and look at the official map you will see that the road goes in and narrows up to nothing.

Mr. Rich - Do you have a copy of your deed?

Mr. Tolman - Yes. There are two deeds; I purchased the land in 1969 – 1970. I changed it over to Tolman Sheet Metal Company cause when I build a complex I had to put that land up for collateral and then I took it back in my own name. So I have owned if for over 40 years. Mr. Rich - On your deed does it describe the land as fronted by Pingree Road?

- 339 Mr. Tolman Correct. I have all the deeds going the whole length of the road that all say fronted by Pingree Road.
 341
- Mr. Rich I am trying to think of any and all the documents that would be helpful for us.
- 344 Mr. LaCortiglia Please get them all to Mr. Snyder as soon as possible. 345

Mr. Tolman - Yes, you can have it as quick as tomorrow morning.

- Mr. Howard I thought Pingree Road got abandoned. It used to go behind 225 East Main Street. 347
- 348 Mr. Tolman Pingree Road did not go behind that house. It goes out to Pingree Farm Road before the highway. I can give you all that stuff.
- 351 Mr. Rich And copy of the deeds. 352

350

353

360

364

366

368

370371

375

378

382

386

- 354
- Mr. Snyder The 28 day review period is going to expire before we are scheduled to meet next. You need to look at the first meeting in November.
- Ms. Evangelista Is there a problem with an extension? I would get an extension because this is a lot of material.
- Mr. Snyder But an extension really applies to a subdivision or a special permit. All it does is formalize that the applicant of Form A is allowing the board additional time but it is not really a binding document.
- 365 Mr. Howard The clock shouldn't be set yet because so we have a bunch of information.
- 367 Mr. Snyder Well it has started because the application has been presented to the board.
- 369 Mr. Howard Then we might just have to deny it then.

Mr. LaCortiglia - That's one way of doing it.

- 372
 373 Mr. Snyder I think what you could do is get the information from the applicant and at least
 374 consider it at the next meeting. At that time come to an agreement with Mr. Tolman if more time
- 376377 Mr. Howard It's clearly going to take more time.
- 379 Mr. LaCortiglia The next meeting is November 13th. 380
- Mr. Tolman Why do we have to do that if we are going to present all the information for you?
- 383 Mr. Rich We don't deliberate in private, we only meet like this. We will see the information. 384
- Mr. Howard It won't be just us there will be other people involved too.

will be afforded to the Board for consideration of the ANR.

Mr. LaCortiglia - I think it is safe to say that we will look at this on November 13^{th.} 388

- Ms. Evangelista Make a list for all Mr. Snyder has to do to make sure he can do it before the next meeting. He needs to find out from the sign who to notify, check the assessors...
- 392 Mr. Snyder I will get the information from the police and fire departments.
- Ms. Evangelista You might want to check with MVPC to see what Mr. Tolman is talking about.
- 396 Mr. Snyder Why would I do that? 397
- Ms. Evangelista What I was thinking as he was talking about this is Do we put fire ways or lanes on our official town map?
- 401 Mr. Snyder No. 402

400

403

410

418

421

430

434

436

404
 405 Mr. Rich - Ms. Evangelista, if Pingree Road was in existence back then so whether you call it

Ms. Evangelista - The school is going to do an assessory road for emergencies.

- 405 Mr. Rich Ms. Evangelista, if Pingree Road was in existence back then so whether you call it the fire road or whatever, it is still a road and if it was abandoned as Mr. Howard brought up then certain steps have to be taken by the selectmen and make it private or abandon it period.

 408
- 409 Ms. Evangelista Has it ever been accepted?
- Mr. Snyder I don't think it was ever accepted but it's always been a right-of-way.
- Mr. Rich It would have been at a time if his records are right, at a time before any of those procedures. Has Route 97 ever been accepted? We just need the documentation. Give Mr. Tolman the time to present all the documentation. Mr. Snyder it wouldn't be a bad thing to try and make contact with them (the sign installers) and try to find out what they refer to it as. You have an engineer saying it is Pingree Road.
- Mr. LaCortiglia We think saying it is public. They must have a reason for doing that. The guy's not going to risk his license.
- Mr. Tolman But it is private because you people put it on the map as private.
- Mr. Rich MVPC does that themselves. Then we would have to have them correct it if it is wrong.
- 426
 427 Mr. LaCortiglia If it is a public road it needs to be shown as a public road.
- 428
 429 Ms. Evangelista I still think it's a good idea to put a fire road on the map.
- Mr. Tolman They will have access if anything happens on the road.
- Mr. LaCortiglia Let's see where it goes. We will bring it all back up on November 13th.
- 435 Mr. Tolman I will be in touch with Mr. Snyder tomorrow.
- 437 Mr. LaCortiglia Thank you. 438

439 **Public Hearing:** 440 1. Special Permit: Georgetown Park and Recreation - East Main Street Recreation 441 Facilities. 442 Mr. LaCortiglia - I am opening the continuation of the public hearing for the Georgetown 443 Park and Rec East Main Street facility. 444 445 Mr. Snyder - Mr. Mammolette provided documentation to the board today which is in the 446 supplemental packet, of his response letter to some of the concerns. 447 448 Mr. LaCortiglia - You verbally gave us these responses at the last meeting correct? 449 450 Mr. Mammolette -Yes, I actually emailed the letter yesterday. 451 452 Mr. LaCortiglia - Are these are the final, final, finals? 453 454 Mr. Mammolette - I hope so. There were things on here that I was supposed to identify. Mr. 455 Snyder do you have a PDF? 456 457 Mr. Snyder - I don't - I think you can outline it verbally. 458 459 Mr. LaCortiglia - All the responses are here on the questions that Mr. Graham brought up. 460 461 Mr. Rich - There are responses but whether they are adequate or not is to be seen. The 462 reason I am saying that is one I see, number 6 on page 3, I don't quite understand. Some of 463 these require a yes or a no answer and the response is that the drawings are more than 464 adequate for their intended purpose... time consuming and cost prohibited. With all due 465 respect, when our engineer asks for something, tell him when you can't give it to him. 466 You're not going to win friends by saying that what you are asking for is not relevant. 467 468 Mr. Mammolette - Honesty, looking at that right now, I think it may have been cut and 469 pasted from one of the many others where that was the appropriate response. The reason it 470 says resolved is because he sent back a letter saying it was resolved. 471 472 Mr. Watts - I see the exact same wording... 473 474 Mr. Rich - If it's resolved, it's resolved can you please clarify that? 475 476 Mr. Mammolette - Yes. That might just be a typo because I was cutting and pasting multiple 477 answers. I can go back and revisit it. 478 479 Mr. LaCortiglia - Essentially Mr. Mammolette, everywhere where it says resolved it doesn't 480 need anything after it. 481

10 of 21

Mr. Mammolette - Again, I'm saying it may be a typo.

Mr. Rich - But there are a couple that say resolved with more after it.

482

Mr. Mammolette - Let me just point to the drawings to show it is resolved. Oh, you're just interested in the words.

Mr. Rich - If it is not then when the finals go to Mr. Graham for reviewing, we will be told.

Mr. LaCortiglia - Maybe it would be easier if you could tell us what isn't resolved? That seems to be the short list right?

Mr. Mammolette - From memory, the first issue that was unresolved from the last letter had to do with the missing camp improvements on the Boy scouts fence which I depicted as existing conditions on the drawing. The next issue was number 12 - there was a question on the width of sidewalks but the sidewalks are all drawn to scale. There was expansion and control joints shown before and I think the person that drew them was just cutting and pasting so I clarified that the control joints would be every 5 feet and the expansion joints are every 50 feet.

Mr. LaCortiglia - If everyone recalls we went over these point by point at the last continuation meeting. It has been a while since that meeting but it is coming back to me now.

Ms. Evangelista - So why don't we just send this to Mr. Graham and that's it?

Mr. Snyder - Mr. Mammolette has provided me with the revised set and the letter and I will be sending them to Mr. Graham tomorrow. Also needed tonight at the public hearing is a Form H to be signed which is a request for more time so that the Planning Board has more time for review.

Mr. Rich - **Motion** to approve the Form H.

Mr. Watts - Second.

Motion Carries: 5-0: Unam.

Mr. LaCortiglia - It sounds like the consensus of the board is to send this to Mr. Graham.

Mr. Howard - And if he is in agreement - or if not then there will have to be more discussion.

Mr. LaCortiglia - I hope not it is getting revised to death.

Mr. Rich - How many trees have we killed?

Mr. Mammolette - I think if you read some of the comments I think you're going to - this is turning into a tennis match and nobody seems to have the upper hand so someone needs to step in I think and referee it. Because I have provided what he's asked for and I look at some things one way and he looks at it another way so I am not sure unless somebody gives me clarity. Like if you want a road profile and he want a road profile and you tell me to make one then I will make one.

Mr. LaCortiglia - We made it clear that we weren't requiring a road profile.

Mr. Mammolette - But there are a number of things in the comments there that show our views are at odds. We are trying to keep coming closer to the center point. But there may be some things that he's not ever going to come to the center point. I think you had pointed out before that it is still the board's decision that you take the feedback and go from there.

Mr. LaCortiglia - I am pretty happy with it right now I would love to see what those changes are on the plan itself. I would be ok with not sending this back to Mr. Graham for another expensive review at the cost of the town. Remember we are paying for this, the engineering and the review. This is a public facility that is being created here. Mr. Graham brought up a ton of good points and I think we are capable of resolving those points without actually sending it back to him but I would like to hear what the board wants.

Mr. Rich - If everything meets with Mr. Graham's approval he should be able to fly thru it and it shouldn't be that expensive. And where it is public money and where it is a public facility, I really want to make sure it is done right. Because it would take more public money to make it right and when you fix things in the field as you know, it is four or five times the cost than if you did it right the first time.

Mr. Snyder - If I can add to that - if most of the items have been addressed then Mr. Graham will go back and look at it and he may come up with that he agrees with everything but those four items. These four items come back to the board and the board can say yes we want this or no we want that.

Mr. Howard - That's what I think.

Mr. Rich - If I were the engineer and got responses like I just read... I think it is more politically correct to say we can agree to disagree and that the decision should be made by the board instead of telling us it's not relevant or telling our engineer it's not relevant.

Mr. Mammolette - But they are not relevant. I am getting dragged through the mud. People are questioning my integrity and that's ok.

Mr. Rich - I am not questioning your integrity.

Mr. Mammolette - I don't worry about that. What I do worry about is that we are talking about stuff that can be fixed in the field that are not critical. I redid the drawings to show a swing set that is not on town property. There are other things in here that are of a similar level. It's all his opinion and if you want to send them back it's fine.

Mr. Rich - Mr. Mammolette you are a PE and we have our PE and each of you are telling us different things. If out PE tells us this is important and you tell us it's irrelevant - the correct answer to that question is that I will leave it up to the board. We can agree to disagree that it

needs to be done and it's a decision the board can make. There's the red flag, that's the point that we need to meet as a board and say yes or no.

Mr. Howard - Didn't we have a list of things to be reviewed?

Mr. LaCortiglia - This is the response form Mr. Graham's comments. Mr. Mammolette responded and this is the letter that he was going to send.

Mr. Mammolette - If you want me to come back in two weeks so you have a chance to review it - I realize you didn't get it timely enough for you guys to review it - no problem. And if you want to send it to Mr. Graham again that's no problem. I'm just trying to point out that there are going to be comments that come back and I reiterate my point and he's going to reiterate his point.

Mr. Howard - And then we as a board can agree with you or ...

Mr. Snyder - We can instruct Mr. Graham to review Mr. Mammolette's letter and in your opinion what are outstanding items. You don't need to readdress things that are resolved. And ask for him to give us your final opinion.

Mr. LaCortiglia - Can we limit it to no more than one hour to do so? He is not cheap and we are paying for this ping pong match.

Mr. Rich - If it were Artisan Development would we be doing this?

Mr. LaCortiglia - No we wouldn't be because this is a public project. If any other applicant came before the board and took this long to be reviewed I believe they would demand to close the hearing.

Mr. Rich - Time out for a second. Please don't hit me with this long stuff. "This long" is Mr. Mammolette's fault - not this boards fault! I will not stand for that and sit quietly having that been said. I have had selectmen tell us that it is because of this board that is delaying this project and that is just not true! You want a decision? I will make a motion to approve or deny it right now! You want it quickly? We've been asking for information. We've been patted on our backs and other parts of our body and on top of our head waiting for information. We have been waiting for information. We have not received the information. It's been on our agenda and no one has been in this room so we've continued it and again and again. And if I take one more set of plans we could open up a paper factory. My colleagues, if you disagree with me, please step in.

Mr. Watts - I think your point is very well taken. We have been judicious about going over this material but I am looking at some of Mr. Graham's comments that are more editorial and not productive engineering. I don't see where some of his comments are material.

Mr. Rich - I think what he is trying to find out is if someone walked the property.

Mr. Mammolette - The note says that the base plan was prepared from a boundary survey made by professional land services and actually I had to add the word boundary in there. So if I performed topographical then whether or not it says boundary it is still a boundary survey. And by the way of you look at the drawings there are meets and bounds all over it suggesting clearly that it is a boundary survey.

Mr. Rich - You just answered the question.

Mr. Mammolette - But the answer was already on there before it was reviewed.

Ms. Evangelista - All you had to say was that it was a topography survey.

Mr. Mammolette - I didn't have to answer it was worded right there!

636 Mr. LaCortiglia - Weeks ago Mr. Mammolette pointed out that note and we had forgotten that.

Mr. Howard - We had a list of like three items. Where is that list?

Mr. LaCortiglia - I would imagine that they are in the minutes from that meeting.

Mr. Howard - If he can pull that up, then we can make a decision tonight.

Ms. Wade - When we last left this meeting a few months ago there were four items that Mr. Mammolette needed to correct which he did do. We were under the assumption that he needed to correct them and return to you so you all could make the vote. It was not a correction that we thought we would have to go to Mr. Graham again. So we would love for you to make the decision tonight and do the vote. Lou has done the corrections. There were four items and they were minor details. We feel like you have enough information. He has done as much as he needs to do and like he said Mr. Graham is going to pull up all kinds of things which is more time and money. We need to get on the Zoning Board, we need to go to ConCom, we have people ready to go, we need to get a new engineer now and we need to build this thing and put it out to bid by spring! And we would really like you guys to take this vote tonight! We have provided enough information - these details are so minor. We don't believe from an engineering or safety issue that they will have any implication. All of the main safety items and engineering is there and it is here on the drawings and is ready for an engineer to go out and put it to bid and build it! And the whole town's ready and waiting and we would love a vote tonight not after Mr. Graham looks at it one more time!

Ms. Evangelista - I want to know if you are talking about four items, how did it get to fortytwo?

Mr. LaCortiglia - We received a letter which was his second review of the plans. It was about thirty two because his numbering system was off. We went thru all bullets. And we resolved down to four of them which Mr. Mammolette was going to tell us which those are.

And my understanding leaving that meeting was that Mr. Mammolette would respond and those four bullet points would come to the board tonight. Mr. Rich - Mr. Mammolette is that your understanding? Mr. Mammolette - Absolutely. Mr. Rich - Then on October 23rd, 2013 you sent a letter to the Planning Board responding saying that this is additional information we are writing to with all of this stuff. Mr. Mammolette - My experience has been that you don't slash things off the list because what can happen is... Mr. Rich - But you're starting it all over again. I don't know if this is identical - we just got it. Other than the four issues we need to resolve, this is bringing in front of us a bunch of other things that you're asking us to say yes or no on. If we have said yes or not then why are we starting it all over again? Mr. Mammolette - No you are not starting again. The word resolved indicates clearly that the issue has been addressed. I just have it on the list so you don't have.... Mr. Rich - Then why didn't you say it was addressed? The word resolved is what's used. Mr. LaCortiglia - If we saw Mr. Graham's review, he would use the same terminology. And they would say resolved after each one. Mr. Snyder - I think what it comes down to is the anticipation/expectation that there are four outstanding items and they have been addressed and... Mr. LaCortiglia - They need to be addressed in the plans. Mr. Rich - Are you saying Mr. Mammolette that the four items are addressed in the plan? Mr. Mammolette - Yes, they are all done. Mr. Rich - That's all you had to say at the beginning. Ms. Wade - I think it's time for a vote. Mr. Rich - You don't want us to take a vote right now. Ms. Evangelista - The Park and Rec committee - if you were so anxious to get this done then why wasn't there a town meeting vote for the money to finish it? You voted for turf, you voted for money to go to the American Legion - you had quite a lot of money from CPC,

why wasn't this...

Mr. LaCortiglia - Time out everybody! One person speaks at a time and the person speaking right now to my knowledge is Ms. Evangelista.

Ms. Evangelista - What I was concerned about when I went to town meeting is that none of this was on there. And when the engineer comes to us and you always say the money, the money. We don't have the money to do this and that. Well, you didn't bother to ask for the money las spring meeting.

721 Mr. Howard - How much money would they ask for?

Ms. Evangelista - I have no clue.

725 Mr. Howard - Neither do they until this is resolved.

Mr. LaCortiglia - With all due respect this project currently has in reserve CPC appropriated funding of over a half million dollars available.

Ms. Evangelista - And how much money was spent for CPC at the town meeting for projects in May?

Mr. LaCortiglia - For other projects it was well over a million and a half.

Ms. Evangelista - That's my point - I was disappointed not to see a request for money because all along you people have been saying that you're short of money.

Mr. Mammolette - It has been made very clear to Park and Rec that they wanted to see this thing completed before we ask for more money. I personally have been saying that I wish we would just keep asking because all they could say is no. We are permitting this as a complete project because it is linked together. Right now they are anxious to get this out to bid. Bottom line is there is not enough money to do everything on these drawings yet. There is still time to go to CPC to ask for money.

Ms. Evangelista - The other thing back to what Mr. Rich said. In my mind if an applicant comes here, regardless of it being a town project or not, they have to follow the same guidelines and regulations as any other applicant. How can we support skipping over some of our regulations just because it is a town project? We do the regulation in the zoning whatever it may be to protect the town and the development. I feel that every time this project comes up that I am under pressure to hurry up and make a decision. This is a project for kids. We have to be more careful in my mind.

753 Mr. Mammolette - We came up with the idea of a sidewalk. Nobody said...

Mr. LaCortiglia - I feel no pressure to approve or deny. I move at a pace that I feel comfortable with. When I feel as though I have enough information and I am ready to make a decision. I hope you all feel that way.

Ms. Evangelista - I don't, not for this project. This project has been a nightmare to me.

Mr. LaCortiglia - This is a public project using taxpayer funds getting reviewed with taxpayer funds as opposed to private. And with respect to regulations I would like to point out one unique thing about this. There is not one regulation on the books about public parks and about how it is to be designed. There is not one bullet point that our town engineer brought out in 38 points that addressed or came close to saying that he did not think it was safe. I have not seen the plans and could not make a decision tonight. I have to see the plans before I vote on them. There were four points at the last continuation that we were in to contention about and only four points. I am hearing from Lou that they are included in the drawings and that is where we left this.

Mr. Watts - I agree a hundred percent. We are one town and we are kicking each other. This is nuts. I don't feel that I have been pressured. I do have a feeling that it would have been wiser to come with a letter with the four bullet points and say how they were resolved. We are charging down a rat hole. We've wasted a lot of time tonight. I want to get this done. I personally think that it's a great project and what I saw, I liked. I want this to happen.

Mr. LaCortiglia - Can I ask t that we continue this hearing without sending it to Mr. Graham and without spending any more money of the towns and park and Rec? Can I suggest that we continue this to November 13th and if you look at the plans and if you are not satisfied with them, then we can send them to Mr. Graham?

Mr. Howard - I don't want to see anything other than those four points and how they are addressed.

Mr. Rich - I have never said I was against this project but I want it done right. I would like something from Mr. Mammolette addressing each of the four points. Once that is done it does not have to go Mr. Graham for me.

Mr. Mammolette - Can you guys name the four?

791 Mr. LaCortiglia - I can't.

Mr. Rich - I can't.

Ms. Wade - Exactly.

Mr. Rich - Excuse me, please don't say it like that to us. I'll tell you something, we've got Lisa Lane in front of us, we've got four other projects in front of us and I don't commit them to memory. And it is unfair to ask any board member to commit them to memory.

Ms. Wade - I wasn't saying that.

Mr. Rich - Asking colleges if they have been pressured? I have been called by selectmen out loud at meeting for the new school that they didn't want to come to the Planning Board

805 because they will get delayed like this project has been delayed. That to me is pressure. Ms. Evangelista was there when it was said. 806 807 808 Mr. LaCortiglia - I get it, I just don't feel it. 809 810 Mr. Rich - I care and I take pride in what this board does and how fast we do things. The 811 selectmen didn't meet all summer. 812 813 Mr. LaCortiglia - On those four bullet points, Mr. Mammolette can you email them to Mr. Snyder tomorrow and I mean tomorrow? 814 815 816 Mr. Rich - Once those are addressed, and if they are addressed adequately, I am prepared to 817 accept the plan. 818 819 Mr. LaCortiglia - Is there anyone uncomfortable with the idea of Mr. Mammolette sending 820 Mr. Snyder the list and then him forwarding it to us for review? 821 822 Ms. Evangelista - I have been disappointed because if Mr. Graham says it needs the 823 calculations then I think it needs the calculations. That's why I want to see MR. Graham 824 reviewing because he brought it out. 825 826 Mr. Mammolette - The calculations are for how to size a rain garden. 827 828 Ms. Evangelista -They were for the road and you didn't want to do it. 829 830 Mr. Mammolette - Why would I calculate for a road? First of all it's not a road, it is a gravel 831 driveway. 832 833 Mr. Howard - If it is not on the list of four items, then let's just move on. 834 835 Ms. Evangelista - I'm not going to vote for it I tell you. I want the project but I want those 836 calculations for the driveway if Mr. Graham wanted it, then I want it. 837 838 Mr. Rich - Would my colleague be kind enough to show me this in Mr. Graham's 839 correspondence? If you can find it, please send it to me. I don't remember it. 840 841 Ms. Evangelista - He even wanted calculations by the church. 842 843 Mr. LaCortiglia - May I point out that that was the same correspondence where he questioned 844 why this board would approve something that was an untouched pristine woodland for only 845 a ball field. 846 847 Ms. Evangelista - He said it more than once to do the calculations. 848 849 Mr. Mammolette - I can tell you exactly what you are discussing right now. The issue was

about storm water management on the paved sections on what are the existing paved sections

now. What he said was that this project will increase the runoff to East Main Street. Except he missed the part about how most of - a significant portion of the upper section that is paved now in their parking lot which will be lowered to facilitate handicap ramps etc... would now be shedding to the back which is reducing the flow to East Main Street not increasing it. And that was what he was asking me to calculate. I would be happy to calculate to show you how it goes down. And then what do I do?

Mr. Howard - No, just the four items Lou.

Ms. Evangelista - Getting back to the regulations that you referred to - if I recall correctly, you were the one that started this bylaw to have this as a special permit. Prior to that there never was one. In 2008 you were the one that got Nick to write the bylaw and since that time why weren't regulations presented?

Mr. LaCortiglia - We never promulgated the bylaw - the board failed to do so.

Mr. Rich - With all due respect to what was then - this is now. Today is today.

Mr. LaCortiglia - Mr. Mammolette is going to send to Mr. Snyder the four points and with reference to show where we can find it.

Ms. Wade - Park and Rec's interpretations is that on the 13th of November, you will be ready to take a vote.

Mr. LaCortiglia - We are about to make a motion to continue.

Ms. Caulfield - I just want to say thank you. We are trying to do something passionate for the town. We are doing it blind and people don't realize that we are trying to do this the best we can and we are just getting steps back and steps back. We are just trying to do the project right and as safe as possible. We are not trying to make it difficult for anyone. The passion is there and we want to keep it there.

Ms. Rec - We hear your frustration from Ms. Evangelista and Mr. Rich. Don't think that on one day that I'm on the playground with my kids and people have nasty comments to say. I have been in this town for three years and I dodge people all the time because I see the comments coming. I hear comments too about Planning Board, ConCom etc... that are not always positive by any means. I remember Mr. Mammolette specifically saying to please help guide me and give me some direction. I understand that we have to be treated like a private entity is treated. But I see the frustration of everyone in town and it is every taxpayer's money. We just want this done. I really hope at the next meeting - please take the time to review the plan because I really hope we don't have to spend more of the taxpayer's money going back to Mr. Graham. Ms. Evangelista I understand your concerns but please I hope you can make some type of decision at the next meeting. And to answer the question of why we don't ask for more money, we were approved 135 thousand at last town meeting for Park and Rec to move forward with another project. The reason Park and Rec has not asked for more money is because the town will probably say no way that they will not give up a

897 dollar more because we have not showed them anything. Here it is years later and we have 898 not even put a shovel in the ground. We will not ask for more money until this is approved 899 and we get a permit and they see some construction.

900 901

Mr. LaCortiglia - The other thing is that people just don't understand how long a lot of these projects take. You will see that with other projects.

902 903 904

905

Ms. Rec - I know there is a lot of red tape. Mr. Mammolette is a good engineer we hired him based on his reputation and he's got a lot of heat through this project too. We hope to get the special permit approved. Please take the time to review the plans. I hope it passes.

906 907 908

909

910

911

912

Mr. Howard - I seem to remember that back in the early stages that we were asked for our advice on safety. Our initial reaction was that you got Lou and I don't know how it ended up but we did get way more involved in this in the design phase early on. We reviewed what Mr. Mammolette originally gave us and then there was a lot of back and forth and that took a lot of time. We weren't trying to delay things we were asked to get involved in certain aspects.

913 914 915

Ms. Wade - Well we are near the end and hopefully these drawings will meet your approval and we can move on.

916 917 918

Mr. LaCortiglia - I'd like to ask if there are any more public comments.

919 920

921

Mr. Rich - When I saw this correspondence of October, it was my belief, because everything was on here that we were revisiting everything on here and not just those four points. Once those four points are addressed, then that is fine.

922 923 924

Mr. Rich - Motion to continue this hearing to the November 13th, 2013 meeting.

925 Mr. Watts - Second.

Motion Carries: 5-0; Unam.

926 927 928

929

930

931

Planning Office:

- 1. Escrow Funds Release: M-Account #26471 Blueberry Lane.
- 2. Escrow Funds Release: M-Account #26463 Rock Pond Estates (Richardson Lane).

932 Mr. Snyder - Rock Pond Estates was established for the preliminary subdivision review. 933

After the preliminary plan was approved it was sold to a different entity.

934 935

- Mr. Rich Motion to release M-Account 26463, Rock Pond Estates.
- 936 Mr. Watts - Second.
- 937 Motion Carries: 5-0; Unam.

938

- 939 Mr. Rich - **Motion** to release M-Account 26471, Blueberry Lane.
- 940 Mr. Howard - Second.
- 941 Motion Carries: 5-0; Unam.

943 Mr. Snyder - Just a note on an escrow account. Provided in your supplemental packet is a 944 copy of the letter from the attorney for the developer of Lisa Lane Rear. The letter wishes to 945 advise the Planning Board that the escrow account for the preliminary plan, once all the Board's consultant bills are paid, is to be closed and a new escrow account be opened for the 946 947 definitive subdivision plan. 948 949 Mr. LaCortiglia - That's how it should be done. Have to close one and open another. 950 951 Mr. Rich - Motion to adjourn. 952 Mr. Howard - Second. 953 Motion Carries: 5-0; Unam. 954

955

Meeting adjourned at 9:05 PM.